
INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE MEETING   
6:00 P.M.  

Wednesday, February 17, 2016 
 

HAMPDEN TOWN OFFICE 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1. MINUTES – 1/13/2016 Meeting 

2. OLD BUSINESS 

a. Penobscot HVAC proposal for Redlink thermostat 

3. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Goodwill Riders Snowmobile Club request for increased funding (Rich Armstrong 
will attend) 

b. DEP memo, MS4 Plan Year 2 Annual Report; update on Town response (due 3/1) 

c. Update on condition of sewer lines at Ammo Park, meetings with Maine Ground 
Developers 

d. Inclusion of industrial flows toward Hampden’s purchased capacity of 1.5 MGD 
at Bangor WWTP 

e. DPW front-end loader, request to purchase vehicle at end of current lease 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

5. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 

 



INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE MEETING   
Wednesday, January 13, 2016 

 
MEETING MINUTES – DRAFT  

 
Attending:  

Councilor Dennis Marble, Chair    Councilor Stephen Wilde 

Mayor David Ryder     Councilor Ivan McPike  

 Councilor Terry McAvoy    Town Manager Angus Jennings 

 Councilor Greg Sirois    DPW Director Sean Currier 

         

Chairman Marble called the meeting to order at 6 PM. 
 

1. MINUTES – 12/28/2015 Meeting – There was a motion and a second to 
approve the December 28, 2015 minutes. The vote was 5-0 vote in favor. 
Councilor McPike did not vote since his term on the Council had not started 
before the previous meeting. 

 

2. OLD BUSINESS 

a. Proposed changes to sewer rates to cover operational and prior 
incurred costs – Town Manager Angus Jennings – Manager Jennings 
presented his memo, included in the meeting packet, summarizing the 
need for sewer rates to increase in order to cover operational and debt 
service costs. Sewer rates were increased just one time since 1998, in 
2009. He projected a database on the wall which included every sewer 
customer, total revenues (both service charges and capital charges) for 
2014 (the last complete year of billings available). The database allowed 
for adjustment of rates with instantaneous recalculation of what that rate 
would generate in total projected revenues (service and capital), as well 
as how rate adjustments would affect sewer customers using the median 
amount of flow, and the 25th percentile and 75th percentile flows. DPW 
Director Currier provided information to the Committee regarding sewer 
operations and costs, including the need to budget for reserves to provide 
for system maintenance, repairs and upgrades. 

 

The Committee discussed the sewer rates at length, and “tested” several 
rate scenarios.  

 

Councilor McAvoy asked how the City of Bangor’s rates had changed 
since 1998, and suggested looking at how these increases would have 
affected Hampden sewer customers, if the Hampden rates had been 
adjusted every year or two, like Bangor. Manager Jennings and DPW 
Director Currier agreed to look into this. 



The Committee recommended referring this matter to the Town Council to 
schedule a public hearing to amend the Fees Ordinance relative to sewer 
rates. 

 

3. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Set date for next meeting of Infrastructure Committee – Tonight’s 

meeting was a special meeting of the Committee. The Committee 

members asked Manager Jennings whether there were any items 

scheduled for the regular January meeting of the Infrastructure Committee 

and he said that there weren’t. Items that will be brought forward to the 

Committee can wait until February. The Committee agreed to cancel the 

Infrastructure Committee’s regularly scheduled meeting in January.  

 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – None.  

 

5. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS – None. 

 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:28 PM. 

 

Respectfully submitted –  

Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

 

































2/16/2016 Town of Hampden Mail  Maine Ground Development  Ammo Park Sewer Inspection

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=689489de5f&view=pt&q=publicworks%40hampdenmaine.gov&qs=true&search=query&th=1529dcfae38965d3&siml… 1/3

Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>

Maine Ground Development  Ammo Park Sewer Inspection 
1 message

Sean Currier <publicworks@hampdenmaine.gov> Mon, Feb 1, 2016 at 12:09 PM
To: Dan Thornton <thorntoncon@gmail.com>
Cc: Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>

Dan,
          On January 29, 2016 Greg Nash (inspector hired by Town this year to
monitor testing) met with Thornton Construction on site to inspect test pits and
pressure/vacuum/mandrel (or cctv pipe in lieu of mandrel) testing of the
previously installed 8" pvc sewer service. The findings on the test pits are
troublesome. Please find the attached report(s) from Greg as to existing
conditions found around the existing sdr35 pvc pipe.

It is my recommendation that the Town not accept the 8" sewer main (as Town
owned sewer) in its current state due to the backfill (ledge, sod and large
diameter rock) and bedding not meeting the Town Sewer Ordinance and detail on
the plans created by Down to EarthOscar Emerson. Also, a couple of the
manholes previously placed, currently have catch basin covers on them and are
draining inflow/runoff from the field into the separated sewer system. This has
significantly increased the volume of wastewater we are sending to Bangor for
treatment at a substantial cost to the Town. These catch basin covers need to be
removed immediately and replaced with solid 26 inch "SEWER" covers with 6"
frames (C33R). The covers should be atgrade within a road or drive and 18"
above grade in grass or offroad areas so no inflow is allowed to the system.

Please call me at your first convenience with questions and so we can discuss
options before proceeding.

Sincerely,

Sean

Attachements:
Town Sewer Ordinance (corresponding pages only). Review 5.3.3 and 5.3.4

Plans (trench detail) by Oscar Emerson

Inspection report by Greg Nash describing existing conditions after   installation



2/16/2016 Town of Hampden Mail  Maine Ground Development  Ammo Park Sewer Inspection

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=689489de5f&view=pt&q=publicworks%40hampdenmaine.gov&qs=true&search=query&th=1529dcfae38965d3&siml… 2/3

Image of trench excavation



2/16/2016 Town of Hampden Mail  Maine Ground Development  Ammo Park Sewer Inspection

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=689489de5f&view=pt&q=publicworks%40hampdenmaine.gov&qs=true&search=query&th=1529dcfae38965d3&siml… 3/3

_________________________________
Sean Currier
Public Works Director
Town of Hampden
106 Western Avenue
Hampden, ME 04444
(207)8623337

3 attachments

Applicable Town ordinance.pdf
367K

ammo park sewer plansOscar Emerson.pdf
5479K

Ammo sewer inspectionGreg Nash1.29.16.pdf
282K

tel:%28207%29862-3337
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=689489de5f&view=att&th=1529dcfae38965d3&attid=0.1&disp=attd&realattid=f_ik46htkm0&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=689489de5f&view=att&th=1529dcfae38965d3&attid=0.2&disp=attd&realattid=f_ik46idgi1&safe=1&zw
https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=689489de5f&view=att&th=1529dcfae38965d3&attid=0.3&disp=attd&realattid=f_ik46ltih2&safe=1&zw


Nash Consulting 
20 Nash Hill Road 

Newburgh, Me 04444 
Tel: 207-234-2650 

E-mail: nshcon@uninets.net 
 
 

To:  Sean Currier, PWD       1/29/2016 

From: Greg Nash 

Subject:  Ammo Sewer  

Sean, 

This letter is to document my findings on January 28, 2016 in regard to the Ammo 

sewer line. Under your instructions, it was my responsibility to observe and 

document the testing and installation methods of the already installed 8” PVC 

sewer line located in the Ammo Park. 

 After meeting with the contractor in the early morning, it was decided to dig test 

pits along the existing sewer to observe the methods and materials used during 

installation. (Especially the bedding material around the pipe zone area.) We also 

had isolated a water infiltration leak at Manhole “H” as indicated on the plans. It 

was decided to excavate at this manhole to fix the water leak and at the same 

time we could verify the pipe installation methods. 

After excavating the area around the outgoing 8” pipe and pumping the ground 

water out, the leak was fixed and we could see the pipe and bedding material. 

It was installed as follows: 

 The pipe appeared to be laid on a thin layer of processed stone. 

 Stone bedding may have been placed up to the spring line of the pipe. 

 Filter fabric was then place over the pipe down to the spring line. 

 Then the pipe was cover with broken ledge and common excavation. 

 There was no processed stone or sand over the pipe.  



I instructed the contractor to dig another test pit at sta 19+25 so I could again 

observe the installation methods. The same methods were observed and 

documented. 

From my observations and experience, it appears to me the pipe was improperly 

installed with no protective material placed directly above the pipe for support 

and protection. 

There were other deficiencies noted during our inspection process in regard to 

manholes. These were costly but fixable items. 

After talking with Dan Thornton on the phone, it was decided to not perform any 

more testing at this point. Dan would talk with you (Sean) and decide where to go 

from here. 

Please let me know if I can be of any further assistance in this matter. 

 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully, 

Greg Nash 

 







2/16/2016 Town of Hampden Mail  Maine Ground Development  Town Sewer acceptance requirements

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=689489de5f&view=pt&q=publicworks%40hampdenmaine.gov&qs=true&search=query&th=152c75457138412d&siml… 1/2

Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>

Maine Ground Development  Town Sewer acceptance requirements 
1 message

Sean Currier <publicworks@hampdenmaine.gov> Tue, Feb 9, 2016 at 1:38 PM
To: tthibodeau <tthibodeau@post.freightlinerofmaine.com>, Dan Thornton <thorntoncon@gmail.com>
Cc: Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>, Dean Bennett
<economicdevelopment@hampdenmaine.gov>

All, please find the list of action items to take place in order for the Town to take
ownership of the existing sewer infrastructure from Ammo Industrial to the
Business Park.

1) Town Council must approve the sewer acceptance by the Town. Maine Ground
shall send written request to the Town Manager to be placed on the agenda for
Council approval once all applicable testing and prerequisites listed below are
met.

2) Maintenance Easement must be in place for Town to access parcels to
maintain sewer main. (20' wide minimum per the ordinance) centered on sanitary
sewer. In this case, the access "road" is offset from the sewer and would require
an additional 20' on "road" side to access the sewer. It was mentioned that the
access easement would be 100' wide which would be sufficient for the Town to
access the sewer for any maintenance activities.

3) Boundary issues must be solidified as discussed in the meeting.

4) Sewer pipe must have proper backfill including a 6" min. pipe embedment with
stone (refer to 5.3.4 MDOT 703.06A Aggregate Base gradation in the sewer
ordinance) to a minimum width of 3 feet wide centered on pipe. As discussed with
Mr. Thornton, Greg Nash will be available to inspect any backfill or testing
operations.

5) Sewer pipe shall be pressure tested per Town Ordinance specification.
                
5) Sewer manholes shall be raised to existing grade in road and 18" above grade
outside of roadway and shoulder.

6) Sewer manholes shall be vacuum tested per Town Ordinance specification
after rim has been brought up to proper grade and prior to backfill.



2/16/2016 Town of Hampden Mail  Maine Ground Development  Town Sewer acceptance requirements

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=689489de5f&view=pt&q=publicworks%40hampdenmaine.gov&qs=true&search=query&th=152c75457138412d&siml… 2/2

7) Sewer pipe shall be CCTV (preferred) inspected or mandrel tested. Sewer pipe
shall be flushed prior to Town taking ownership, unless CCTV verifies no
sediment exists in pipe.

The existing sewer infrastructure can remain in place if excavated, and proper
backfill installed with conditions above. No organics or rocks larger than 6" should
be in the backfill of the trench. Other requirements are specified in the Town
Sewer Ordinance for compaction. It is my understanding that CES believes that
the 8" pipe is sufficient for flows generated from the full build out of the area from
the proposed Fiberite facility to Coldbrook Road.

Please let me know if you have additional questions.

Thank you for your time.

Sincerely,

Sean  
_________________________________
Sean Currier
Public Works Director
Town of Hampden
106 Western Avenue
Hampden, ME 04444
(207)8623337

tel:%28207%29862-3337


2/16/2016 Town of Hampden Mail  Fwd: Fiber Rite flow

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=689489de5f&view=pt&q=publicworks%40hampdenmaine.gov&qs=true&search=query&th=152c744adf5cb2ae&siml… 1/2

Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>

Fwd: Fiber Rite flow 
1 message

Sean Currier <publicworks@hampdenmaine.gov> Tue, Feb 9, 2016 at 1:21 PM
To: Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>

This is a very substantial item that we need to look at. I will review the interlocal
agreement and see if I agree with Norm.

Please see Andy's email below.

Sean 
_________________________________
Sean Currier
Public Works Director
Town of Hampden
106 Western Avenue
Hampden, ME 04444
(207)8623337

 Forwarded message 
From: Rudzinski, Andy <andy.rudzinski@bangormaine.gov>
Date: Tue, Feb 9, 2016 at 1:09 PM
Subject: Fiber Rite flow
To: Sean Currier <publicworks@hampdenmaine.gov>
Cc: "Heitmann, Norman" <norman.heitmann@bangormaine.gov>

Sean

 

I spoke to Norm regarding the reserve flow from Hampden and the addition of flow from Fiber Rite.  He is of the
opinion that under the language & intent of the Interlocal Agreement, the industrial flow from any
commercial/industrial does in fact count against the 1.5 mgd reserve flow from Hampden.  Similar to all the other
industrial/commercial users like Hannaford or Frost’s garage, etc. 

 

I know this is of great importance to Hampden, and the town of course has the option to speak directly to the
City manager or solicitor.

 

Regards

 

Andy

 

Andrew Rudzinski, Director Water Quality Management

tel:%28207%29862-3337
mailto:andy.rudzinski@bangormaine.gov
mailto:publicworks@hampdenmaine.gov
mailto:norman.heitmann@bangormaine.gov


2/16/2016 Town of Hampden Mail  Fwd: Fiber Rite flow

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=689489de5f&view=pt&q=publicworks%40hampdenmaine.gov&qs=true&search=query&th=152c744adf5cb2ae&siml… 2/2

City of Bangor WWTP

760 Main St.

Bangor, Maine 04401

9924477

andy.rudzinski@bangormaine.gov

 

 

mailto:andy.rudzinski@bangormaine.gov


2/16/2016 Town of Hampden Mail  Front End Loader

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ui=2&ik=689489de5f&view=pt&q=publicworks%40hampdenmaine.gov&qs=true&search=query&th=152d68d3b50fbb8c&siml… 1/1

Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>

Front End Loader 
1 message

Sean Currier <publicworks@hampdenmaine.gov> Fri, Feb 12, 2016 at 12:35 PM
To: Angus Jennings <townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov>

Angus, our lease is up on March 1 for the loader. I would like to trade this one
back in and lease another. do we need to go to bid or since we have a lease
currently with nortrax, could we reenter an agreement with them? it is over 100k
so I know it would be going to council but I need an idea of what process to start.

Thanks,

Sean

it would be budgeted for next FY and the payment would most likely come out
after July 1 but need to have my ducks in a row. That is the most important pieces
of equipment we have.

TY
_________________________________
Sean Currier
Public Works Director
Town of Hampden
106 Western Avenue
Hampden, ME 04444
(207)8623337

tel:%28207%29862-3337



